Notice to Readers of Enersource’s Audited 2012 Financial Statements
Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
Effective January 1, 2012, Enersource Corporation and all of its subsidiary companies adopted
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as the basis of preparing and disclosing its
consolidated and individual company financial statements. Adopting IFRS required that 2011 financial
results be restated to align with the new standard for comparability purposes. Details relating to the
first time adoption of IFRS are provided within the Audited 2012 Financial Statements under note 5.
Enersource Corporation’s subsidiary, Enersource Hydro Mississauga Inc., is a rate regulated enterprise
operating under regulated accounting rules as prescribed by the Ontario Energy Board for rate making
purposes. Such rules align with the pre-IFRS Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles with
respect to the recognition of Regulatory Assets and Liabilities which address the deferral of specific nonincome related cash inflows and outflows. IFRS does not recognize such regulatory-based deferrals and
treats these cash inflows and outflows as revenue and expense in the period incurred. This treatment of
regulatory-based deferrals may create material variations in reported net income from one fiscal period
to the next, but generally are eliminated over time. We have disclosed the effect of these regulatorybased deferrals in Note 24 “Divisional Information”.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Shareholder of Enersource Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Enersource Corporation, which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and
January 1, 2011, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Enersrouce Corporation as at December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and
January 1, 2011, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Toronto, Canada
March 5, 2013

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
December 31, 2012 with comparative figures for December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011
December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011
(Note 5)

January 1,
2011
(Note 5)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)
Accounts receivable, net (Note 7)
Unbilled revenue
Income taxes receivable
Inventory (Note 8)
Prepaid expenses
Deposits (Note 9)
Total current assets

$

Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 10)
Intangible assets (Note 11)
Deferred tax assets (Note 14)
Total non-current assets

72,724
65,239
59,363
2,310
8,474
2,378
19,732
230,220

$

107,127
60,180
59,739
7,527
2,267
22,693
259,533

505,231
18,653
14,004
537,888

Total assets

$

465,866
18,389
14,800
499,055

53,568
56,165
67,563
7,872
1,871
20,739
207,778
449,367
15,583
19,641
484,591

$

768,108

$

758,588

$

692,369

$

107,704
2,078
13,868
19,732
143,382

$

99,564
1,904
2,070
6,853
22,693
133,084

$

90,888
3,375
2,759
150
20,739
289,811
407,722

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 12)
Income taxes payable
Advance payments
Deferred revenue (Note 15)
Deposits payable (Note 9)
Bonds payable (Note 16)
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Debentures payable (Note 16)
Deferred contributions (Note 17)
Employee post-employment benefits (Note 18)
Total non-current liabilities

317,951
5,584
6,777
330,312

317,864
4,448
5,784
328,096

4,496
4,496

Total liabilities

473,694

461,180

412,218

Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital (Note 19)
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity

175,691
(926)
119,649
294,414

175,691
(615)
122,332
297,408

175,691
104,460
280,151

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Contingencies, commitments and guarantees (Note 21)

$

768,108

$

758,588

$

692,369

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
On behalf of the Board of Directors:
_____________ Norm B. Loberg, Director
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Gerald E. Beasley, Director

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
December 31,
2012
Revenue:
Energy sales
Distribution
Services
Other revenue

$

Operating Expenses:
Energy purchases (Note 12)
Employee salaries and benefits
Materials and transportation
Contract services
Other costs
Conservation and demand management (Note 25 (a))
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Results from operating activities
Non-operating revenue (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Interest expense on accrued post-employment benefits

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax (recovery) expense (Note 13)
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income net of income tax:
Remeasurements of the post-employment net benefit liability (Note 18)
Income tax charge

Comprehensive income for the year
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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711,877
91,894
8,698
17,920
830,389

December 31,
2011
(Note 5)
$

683,116
121,483
10,332
14,416
829,347

704,527
36,496
5,711
7,335
11,324
12,298
25,117
2,851
805,659

678,862
33,217
6,208
7,111
12,987
9,363
25,542
2,286
775,576

24,730

53,771

1,641
(15,778)
(260)
(14,397)

1,238
(17,247)
(262)
(16,271)

10,333

37,500

(632)

9,006

10,965

28,494

(423)
112
(311)

(822)
207
(615)

10,654

27,879

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating Activities:
Comprehensive income for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of deferred contributions
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Employee post-employment benefits
Income tax expense
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax paid

$

10,654

$

27,879

25,117
2,851
(112)
(196)
993
(744)
(1,641)
15,778
(2,607)
50,093
9,591
59,684

25,542
2,286
(50)
(169)
1,288
8,799
(1,238)
17,247
(5,430)
76,154
17,074
93,228

Cash flows from investing activities:
Deposits
Interest received
Capitalized interest
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to intangible assets
Additions to deferred contributions
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Cash used in investing activities

2,961
1,606
683
(64,979)
(2,970)
1,248
303
(61,148)

(1,954)
1,180
403
(40,490)
(5,246)
4,498
282
(41,327)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Bonds
Debentures
Deposits
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Cash from (used in) financing activities

(2,961)
(13,648)
(16,330)
(32,939)

(290,000)
317,808
1,954
(10,622)
(17,482)
1,658

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents

(34,403)

53,559

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

107,127

53,568

Change in non-cash working capital (Note 20)
Net cash from operating activities

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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72,724

$

107,127

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

175,691

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income
(Note 18)
$ (615)

-

(311)
-

Share
Capital
Balance at January 1, 2012

$

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Dividends paid
Balance at December 31, 2012

$

175,691

Balance at January 1, 2011

$

Balance at December 31, 2011

$

$

122,332

Total Equity
$

10,965
(13,648)

297,408
10,965
(311)
(13,648)

(926)

$

119,649

$

294,414

175,691

-

$

104,460

$

280,151

-

(615)
-

175,691

(615)

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Dividends paid

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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$

Retained
Earnings

28,494
(10,622)
$

122,332

28,494
(615)
(10,622)
$

297,408

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
1.

General Information:
(a) Corporate Information:
Enersource Corporation (the "Corporation"), incorporated under the Ontario Business
Corporations Act, was formed to conduct electricity distribution and non-regulated utility service
ventures. The Corporation is owned 90% by the City of Mississauga (the "City") and 10% by
BPC Energy Corporation ("Borealis"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Ontario Municipal
Employees Retirement System ("OMERS").
The Corporation’s equity is not traded in a public market. The Corporation’s registered office is
located at 2185 Derry Road West in Mississauga, Ontario, L5N 7A6.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation's
wholly owned subsidiaries: Enersource Hydro Mississauga Inc. ("Enersource Hydro"),
Enersource Services Inc., Enersource Telecom Inc. (“Telecom”), Enersource Technologies Inc.
(“Technologies”) and Enersource Hydro Mississauga Services Inc. (“EHM Services”). The
Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the
Corporation’s functional currency.
(b) Nature of operations:
The Corporation provides electricity distribution services to businesses and residences in the
City of Mississauga, Ontario through its subsidiary, Enersource Hydro.
EHM Services provides utility services, including electricity distribution infrastructure design,
construction and operations and streetlight construction and maintenance services to
customers in Ontario.
Enersource Services Inc. is the parent company for the Corporation's non-regulated
businesses, which includes Telecom and EHM Services which also owns 100% of
Technologies.
In September 2011, the Corporation received the articles of amalgamation confirming the
amalgamation of Telecom with EHM Services. An amalgamation certificate was received
indicating that the assets and liabilities of Telecom were amalgamated into EHM Services.
Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
2.

Basis of Preparation:
(a) Statement of compliance:
The accompanying annual consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and Interpretations of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). These consolidated financial statements also comply with
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption (“IFRS 1”) of IFRS. They should be read in conjunction with the
2011 Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP”) consolidated
financial statements and related notes. In this context, the term “Canadian GAAP” refers to
generally accepted accounting principles before the adoption of IFRS. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved by the Corporation’s Board of Directors on March 5,
2013.
(b) Basis of measurement:
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis with
the exception of certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value.
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the period, as set out in note 4. Accounts receivable
is reported based on amounts expected to be recovered less an appropriate allowance for
unrecoverable amounts based on prior experience. Unbilled revenue is reported based on
amounts expected to be recovered. Inventory is recorded net of a provision for obsolescence.
Amounts recorded for depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of
intangible assets are based on estimates of useful life.
Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making such estimates, actual results could differ
from estimates recorded in preparing these consolidated financial statements, including
changes as a result of future decisions made by the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”) or the
Ministry of Energy.
(c) Adoption of IFRS:
Subject to certain transition elections disclosed in Note 5, the Corporation has consistently
applied the same accounting policies in its opening IFRS consolidated statement of financial
position at January 1, 2011, and throughout all periods presented, as if these policies had
always been in effect. Previously, the Corporation prepared its consolidated annual and interim
financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP. Note 5 discloses reconciliations to
IFRS from the previously published Canadian GAAP primary financial statements, including the
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
2.

Basis of Preparation (continued):
nature and effect of significant changes in accounting policies from those used in the
Corporation’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011.
Comparative figures for 2011 in these consolidated financial statements have been restated to
give effect to these changes.
(d) Rate setting:
Enersource Hydro, as an electricity distributor, is both licensed and regulated by the OEB which
has a legislative mandate to oversee various aspects of the electricity industry. The OEB
exercises statutory authority through setting or approving all rates charged by Enersource
Hydro and establishing standards of service for Enersource Hydro’s customers.
Enersource Hydro is subject to a cost of service regulatory mechanism under which the OEB
establishes the revenues required (i) to recover the forecast operating costs, including
depreciation and amortization and income taxes, of providing the regulated service, and (ii) to
provide a fair and reasonable return on utility investment, or rate base. As actual operating
conditions may vary from forecast, actual returns achieved can differ from approved returns.
The OEB has the power to establish electricity prices to be charged to low volume consumers
and designated consumers who do not choose an electricity retailer. The OEB may adjust
consumption thresholds and electricity commodity prices charged to these consumers every six
months as required.
In October 2010, Enersource Hydro submitted a formula based rate application to the OEB to
change distribution rates for the rate period May 1, 2011 through April 30, 2012. The application
was approved by the OEB on March 17, 2011. Enersource Hydro implemented this distribution
rate decision, effective May 1, 2011.
In November 2011, Enersource Hydro submitted a formula based rate application to the OEB to
change distribution rates effective May 1, 2012. The application was approved by the OEB on
April 19, 2012. Enersource Hydro implemented this distribution rate decision, effective May 1,
2012.

3.

Significant Accounting Policies:
(a) Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash and bank term deposits or equivalent
financial instruments with maturities of 90 days or less from the date of purchase.
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
(b) Inventory:
Inventory consists primarily of parts and supplies acquired for internal construction,
consumption or recoverable work. The Corporation accounts for major spare parts and
standby equipment as property, plant and equipment.
Inventory costs are comprised of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs to
bring the inventories to their present condition and location. The purchase price comprises of
import duties, non-recoverable taxes, transportation, handling and other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials or services.
Inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost determined on a
weighted average cost basis net of a provision for obsolescence.
(c) Deposits:
Customers may be required to post security to obtain electricity or other services, which are
refundable on demand. Where the security posted is in the form of cash or cash equivalents,
these amounts are recorded in the accounts as deposits, which are reported separately from
the Corporation's own cash and cash equivalents. Interest rates paid on customer deposits are
based on the Bank of Canada’s prime business rate less 2.0%.
Also included in this balance are cash and securities lodged with the Corporation by
counterparties under electricity supply agreements.
(d) Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”):
The Corporation has elected the deemed cost exemption applicable to entities subject to rate
regulation as described under IFRS 1. The election permits an entity, at the date of transition to
IFRS, to use the previous Canadian GAAP carrying amount of items of PP&E as deemed cost
(thereby eliminating any accumulated depreciation balances existing at the date of transition);
hence there will be no impact on retaining earnings for opening balances of PP&E at the date
of transition.
The Corporation recognizes PP&E on the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Self-constructed asset costs are
comprised of all directly attributable expenditures to bring the asset into operation including
labour, employee benefits, materials and transportation costs, contracted services and
capitalized borrowing costs (in accordance with IAS 23 Borrowing Costs), where applicable.
Subsequent expenditures are included in an asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, where appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
associated with the item will flow to the Corporation and the cost can be reliably measured.
Under IFRS, an asset is derecognized at its carrying value when it is disposed of or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of PP&E is determined as the difference between the proceeds from sale
and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income.
The need to estimate the cost of decommissioning or asset retirement obligations (“ARO”) at
the end of the useful lives of certain assets is reviewed periodically. A provision is recorded, if
required, for the estimated cost of the ARO. Currently, the Corporation does not have any
ARO’s since the decision and the actual removal or replacement of PP&E is usually completed
within 12 months of the decision. The Corporation also does not have a legal obligation to
remove PP&E and the constructive obligation has been determined to be immaterial.
Major spares such as spare transformers and other items kept as standby/back up equipment
are accounted for as PP&E since they support the Corporation’s distribution system reliability.
All other subsequent expenditures, including the costs of day-to-day servicing, repairs and
maintenance, are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation of PP&E is recorded in the statements of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Estimated useful lives for the main categories of PP&E are shown in the table below:
Buildings and other fixtures
Distribution system and station equipment
Overhead and underground distribution system
Other PP&E

20 - 60 years
15 - 40 years
15 - 55 years
3 - 25 years

Assets under construction, which are not currently available for use, are not depreciated.
During the construction period of qualifying assets, borrowing cost has been capitalized as a
component of cost of self-constructed assets. The capitalization rate is the Corporation’s
weighted average cost of borrowings.
(e) Intangible assets:
The Corporation has elected the deemed cost exemption applicable to entities subject to rate
regulation as described under IFRS 1. The election permits an entity, at the date of transition to
IFRS, to use the previous Canadian GAAP carrying amount of intangible assets as deemed
cost (thereby eliminating any accumulated amortization balances existing at the date of
9

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
transition); hence there will be no impact on retaining earnings for opening balances of
intangible assets at the date of transition.
Intangible assets are assets that lack physical substance, other than financial assets.
Intangible assets, which consist mainly of computer software and easements, are recorded at
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, where applicable, and
include expenditures associated with the initial acquisition or development, which are directly
attributable to the acquisition, production and preparation of the asset for its intended use.
Software that is an integral part of the cost of PP&E has been included in PP&E.
Amortization of intangible assets with finite lives is recorded on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful life of the related asset and recorded in the statement of comprehensive
income. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each
annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Software in development is not amortized.
Estimated useful lives for intangible assets are shown in the table below:
Computer software

2 - 10 years

Indefinite life intangible assets, which consist of easements and other land rights, are held in
perpetuity and are not amortized. The Corporation evaluates indefinite life intangible assets for
impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. For purposes of such an evaluation, the fair value estimate is
compared to the carrying amount of the asset to determine if a write-down is required. The
impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its fair value.
(f) Impairment of PP&E and intangible assets:
PP&E and intangible assets with finite lives are tested for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate a possible impairment. Impairment is assessed and tested
at the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) level (or groups of CGUs), which is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates independent cash inflows. An impairment of PP&E and
intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in profit or loss when the asset’s carrying value
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where fair value less costs to sell is not reliably
available, value in use is used as the recoverable amount. Value in use is the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset, CGU or group of CGUs.
An impairment charge may be reversed only if there is objective evidence that a change in the
estimate used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment was
recognized is warranted. Where an impairment charge is subsequently reversed, the carrying
10

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised recoverable amount to the extent that
it does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
charge been recognized in previous periods. A reversal of an impairment charge is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the depreciation or amortization charge,
where relevant, is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount,
less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
(g) Regulatory accounting:
In the absence of a rate regulated standard under IFRS, Enersource Hydro does not recognize
assets and liabilities arising from rate regulated activities. Instead, Enersource Hydro records
revenues in accordance with its revenue recognition policy and expenses as operating costs
when incurred. Regulatory balances that have been derecognized under IFRS are disclosed in
Note 24.
(h) Revenue recognition:
Customer billings for debt retirement charges are recorded on a net basis as the Corporation is
acting as an agent for this revenue stream. The Corporation files to recover uncollected debt
retirement charges from the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (“OEFC”) when accounts
receivable are deemed uncollectible.
The Corporation is licensed by the OEB to distribute electricity. As a licensed distributor, the
Corporation is responsible for billing customers for electricity generated by third parties and the
related costs of providing electricity service, such as transmission services and other services
provided by third parties. The Corporation is required, pursuant to regulation, to remit such
amounts to these third parties, irrespective of whether the Corporation ultimately collects these
amounts from customers. The Corporation has determined that it is acting as a principal for the
electricity distribution and therefore has presented the energy sales on a gross basis.

Distribution revenue attributable to the delivery of electricity is recognized based upon OEBapproved distribution rates and charges as electricity is delivered to customers, which includes
an estimate of unbilled revenue that represents electricity consumed by customers since the
date of each customer's last meter reading. Revenue is recognized as electricity is delivered
and consumed by customers. Energy revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter
readings and estimates of customer usage since the last meter reading date to the end of the
reporting period. Actual electricity usage could differ from estimates.
Services and other revenues are recognized as services are rendered or contract milestones
are achieved. Amounts received in advance of these milestones are presented as deferred
revenue.
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
(i) Deferred debt issue costs:
Deferred debt issue costs represent the cost of the issuance of the bonds and debentures. The
Corporation's deferred debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are included in
the carrying value of bonds and debentures payable. The bonds and debentures are accreted
back to their face amount using the effective interest rate method over the remaining period to
maturity.
(j) Employee post-employment benefits:
The Corporation’s current pension plan is administered by OMERS and is a multi-employer
public sector defined-benefit pension plan funded by equal contributions from participating
employers and employees as well as by investment earnings of the plan. Pension contributions
received from all OMERS employers and members are combined and used jointly to purchase
investments. Under OMERS’ funding and investment structure, investment and actuarial
evaluations are determined on a commingled basis across all employers and as a result,
information for individual employers is unavailable.
As the Corporation does not have the information to account for its proportionate share of the
defined benefit obligation and plan assets, the Corporation accounts for it’s participation in
OMERS as a defined contribution plan, and all contributions to the plan are recognized as an
expense.
The Corporation also provides post-employment life, health, and dental benefits to its
employees. An actuary determines the cost of these benefits as well as measures the plan
obligation. The actuary uses the projected unit credit method, prorated on service and based on
management's best estimate assumptions. Under this method, the projected post-employment
benefit is deemed to be earned on a pro rata basis over the years of service in the attribution
period, and ends at the earliest age the employee could retire and qualify for benefits.
The Corporation recognizes any remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability including
actuarial gains and losses immediately in other comprehensive income. Current service costs
are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income under employee salaries and
benefits and net interest expense on accrued post-employment benefits are disclosed on the
face of the statement of comprehensive income. The Corporation has elected to adopt IAS 19R
Employee Benefits, the Revised Standard (“IAS 19R”) early and commenced reporting in
accordance with this standard on the date of transition. At the date of transition, the Corporation
reclassified accumulated remeasurements as retained earnings. The Corporation will
accumulate remeasurements after the date of transition and transfer them to retained earnings
when approved for recovery or refund by the OEB.
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
(k) Deferred contributions:
Certain assets may be acquired or constructed with financial assistance in the form of
contributions from customers when the estimated revenue is less than the cost of providing
service or where special equipment is needed to supply the customers’ specific requirements.
Since the contributions will provide customers with ongoing access to the supply of electricity,
these contributions are classified as deferred contributions and are amortized as revenue on a
straight-line basis over the useful life of the constructed or contributed asset.
(l) Income taxes:
Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to make payments in lieu of
corporate income taxes ("PILs") to the OEFC. These payments are calculated in accordance
with the rules for computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained
in the Income Tax Act (Canada), the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario), as modified by the Electricity
Act, 1998, and related regulations. References in these financial statements to income taxes
are with respect to PILs.
The Corporation recognizes deferred tax using the balance sheet method. Under this method,
deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for accounting purposes, as well as for tax
losses available to be carried forward to future years that are probable. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates, at the reporting
date, expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the year that includes the date of enactment or
substantive enactment. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset since they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.
A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realized.
Current taxes are based on taxable profit or loss for the year, which differ from profit or loss as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are neither taxable nor deductible.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
The Corporation’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Both current and deferred taxes are included as part of income tax expense on the statement of
comprehensive income.
(m) Foreign currency translation:
The Corporation’s financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, the functional
currency of the Corporation and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Corporation operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency at the prevailing rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian
dollars at the prevailing period-end rates. All differences are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Exchange gains or losses on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is reported as part of other income in profit and loss.
Realized and unrealized exchange gains and losses are included in income.
(n) Financial instruments:
All financial assets of the Corporation are classified into one of the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available for sale financial assets, held-tomaturity, and loans and receivables. All financial liabilities are classified as either financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or financial liabilities at amortized cost. The
Corporation has elected to adopt IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) early and
commenced reporting in accordance with this standard on the date of transition.
The Corporation has classified its financial instruments as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivables
Unbilled revenues
Deposits
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Advance payments
Bonds payable
Debentures payable
Deposits payable

Fair value through profit or loss
Loans and receivables at amortized cost
Loans and receivables at amortized cost
Loans and receivables at amortized cost
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Cash equivalents include short-term investments that are readily convertible to cash without
significant loss in value. These short term investments are comprised of bankers’ acceptances
and bankers’ demand notes issued by Canadian banks.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial instruments of the Corporation are
carried on the statement of financial position at fair value, except for loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and financial liabilities at amortized cost, which are measured at
amortized cost.
The Corporation does not enter into derivative instruments. Hedge accounting has not been
used in the preparation of these financial statements.
Financial instruments which are measured at fair value are to be classified using a three-level
hierarchy. Each level reflects the inputs used to measure the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities, and are as follows:




Level 1 – inputs are unadjusted quoted prices of identical instruments in active markets
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

The Corporation’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value through profit or loss
are classified as Level 1.
(o) Capital disclosures:
The Corporation's objectives with respect to its capital structure are to maintain effective
access to capital on a long-term basis, at reasonable rates, and to deliver the appropriate
financial returns to its shareholders.
Effective May 1, 2008, Enersource Hydro was deemed by the OEB for rate setting purposes to
have a capital structure that was funded by 56% long-term debt, 4% short-term debt and 40%
equity. The OEB uses this deemed structure as a basis of how capital is funded for rate setting
purposes only. The actual capital structure for Enersource Hydro may differ from the OEB
deemed structure.
(p) Provisions and Contingencies:
The Corporation recognizes provisions when there is a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events requires judgment by management as
to the probability of exposure to potential loss. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
A contingent asset is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. However, a
contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
(q) Short term employee benefits:
The cost of short term employee benefits, which includes salaries, employment insurance,
short term compensated absences, health and dental care, are recognized as an expense in
employee salaries and benefits as employees render service. When the services are rendered
in the construction or development of an asset and they meet the recognition criteria as part of
the cost of an asset, the cost of the short term employee benefits is included as part of the
related PP&E or intangible asset.
(r) Government grants:
The Corporation includes in profit or loss government grants received from the Ontario Power
Authority (“OPA”). The funding received from the OPA is to reimburse costs incurred by the
Corporation to deliver electricity conservation and demand management programs (“CDM”).
(s) Consolidation:
The Corporation prepares consolidated financial statements. All intercompany balances and
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(t) Voluntary early adoption of IFRS’s:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments published in October 2010 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and establishes the criteria for financial reporting of assets and
liabilities with only two classification categories: amortized cost and fair value. The basis of
classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2015 but may be applied earlier. The Corporation has elected to adopt this
standard effective January 1, 2011.
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements published in May 2011 establishes the principles
for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial statements when an entity
controls one or more other entities. IFRS 10 replaces the requirements relating to consolidated
financial statements in IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. The standard
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 but may be applied earlier.
The Corporation has elected to adopt this standard effective January 1, 2011.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements was amended in May 2012 to clarify the guidance
on providing additional comparative information beyond the minimum requirements and that on
the presentation of the ‘third’ statement of financial position. The amendments are applied
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 with earlier application
permitted. The Corporation has elected to adopt this amended standard effective January 1,
2011. IAS 1 underwent amendments in June 2012 which amends the presentation of items of
other comprehensive income and renames the statement of comprehensive income; however
the entity may continue to use a title other than that used in the standard. The amendments
are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012 with early
application permitted. The corporation has adopted the amendments to this standard effective
January 1, 2011.
IAS 19 Employee Benefits was amended in June 2011 to change the recognition and
measurement of defined benefit pension expense and termination benefits and increase
disclosures. The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013. The Corporation has elected to adopt this amended standard effective January 1, 2011.

(u) Future accounting changes:
The following is an amendment to existing standards and interpretations as well as new
standards and interpretations:
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement was issued in May 2011. It defines fair value, sets out a
framework for measuring fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurement. It is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is
permitted. The Corporation is currently in the process of evaluating the potential impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

4.

Key Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions:
In the process of applying the Corporation’s accounting policies, Management has made the
following estimates, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.

17

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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4.

Key Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (continued):
(a) Revenue recognition:
Measurement of usage not yet billed, which is included in revenues from the regulated
distribution of electricity, is based on either the actual usage at the end of the period or an
assessment of unbilled electricity distribution services supplied to customers between the date
of the last meter reading and the period ending date. The Corporation applies judgment to the
measurement of the estimated consumption and to the valuation of that consumption.
(b) Useful lives of depreciable assets:
The Corporation, in conjunction with four other utilities, engaged a third party to conduct an
independent study of asset useful lives. The Corporation revised its componentization
structure and revised the estimated useful lives of its distribution system assets and other
assets as a result of that study, effective January 1, 2011. Actual lives of assets may vary from
estimated useful lives.
(c) Employee post-employment benefits other than pensions:
The costs of post-employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, any expected rates of return on
assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the longterm nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.
(e) Accounts receivable impairment:
In determining the allowance for doubtful accounts, the Corporation considers historical loss
experience of account balances based on the aging and arrears status of accounts receivable
balances.
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS:
The Corporation’s consolidated financial statements for year ended December 31, 2012 are the
first annual financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. The accounting policies set
out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2011 and in the preparation of an opening IFRS statement of
financial position at January 1, 2011 (the Corporation’s date of transition). The Corporation
previously presented financial statements under Canadian GAAP up to, and including
December 31, 2011. Although there are many similarities between Canadian GAAP and IFRS,
there are some significant differences which had an impact on the Corporation’s financial
statements.
IFRS 1 requires retrospective application of IFRS standards in place as at the reporting date.
However, IFRS 1 contains certain optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions from the
general requirement for retrospective application. All retrospective opening transition
adjustments were recognized as an adjustment to the Corporation’s January 1, 2011 retained
earnings balance, excluding reclassifications, and all 2011 IFRS period adjustments, excluding
reclassifications, were recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
The Corporation has determined the following mandatory or optional exemptions will apply to
the consolidated opening IFRS statement of financial position:
(i)

Previous Canadian GAAP carrying amount as deemed cost for PP&E and intangible
assets;

(ii)

Decommissioning liabilities included in the cost of PP&E – elected on a case by case
basis at the date of transition;

(iii)

Determine if an arrangement contains a lease at the date of transition;

(iv)

Recognize a financial asset relating to a preferred share ownership; and,

(v)

Derecognize all assets and liabilities not permitted.
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):
(a) Previous Canadian GAAP carrying amount as deemed costs for PP&E and intangible assets.
Entities with operations subject to rate regulations may hold items of PP&E or intangible assets
where the carrying amount of such items might include amounts that were determined under
previous Canadian GAAP but do not qualify for capitalization in accordance with IFRS. If this is
the case, a first-time adopter may elect to use the previous Canadian GAAP carrying amount of
such an item at the date of transition to IFRS as deemed cost. An entity shall apply this
exemption for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011, but earlier application is
permitted.
Entities are subject to rate regulation if they provide goods or services to customers at prices
(i.e. rates) established by an authorized body empowered to establish rates that bind the
customers and that are designed to recover the specific costs the entity incurs in providing the
regulated goods or services and to earn a specified return.
Under this exemption the deemed cost at the date of transition becomes the new IFRS cost
basis. The accumulated amortization recognized under previous Canadian GAAP prior to the
transition date has been included as part of the deemed cost so that the net book values will
not be affected.
At the date of transition to IFRS, an entity shall also test for impairment, each item for which
this exemption is used.
This exemption does not only apply to individual entities with rate regulated activities but also to
the consolidated financial statements of their parent companies.
Based on the definition above, the Corporation qualifies for this IFRS 1 exemption as
Enersource Hydro is subject to rate regulations and accordingly the Corporation elected to use
the deemed cost election for opening balance sheet values for its PP&E and intangible assets.
At the date of transition, the Corporation’s gross book value, accumulated depreciation and net
book value for PP&E was $872,359, $422,992 and $449,367 respectively. The gross book
value, accumulated amortization and net book value for intangible assets was $18,389, $2,806
and $15,583 respectively.
The Corporation reviewed the additional requirements against the information provided in IAS
36 Impairment of Assets and determined that no impairments would be recorded.
(b) Decommissioning liabilities included in the cost of PP&E – elected on a case by case basis at
the date of transition.
IFRIC 1 requires specified changes in a decommissioning, restoration or similar liability to be
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset to which it relates; the adjusted depreciable
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):
amount of the asset is then depreciated prospectively over its remaining useful life. A first-time
adopter need not comply with these requirements for changes in such liabilities that occurred
before the date of transition to IFRS. If a first-time adopter uses this exemption, it shall:
(i)

measure the liability as at the date of transition to IFRS in accordance with IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;

(ii)

to the extent that the liability is within the scope of IFRIC 1, estimate the amount that
would have been included in the cost of the related asset when the liability first arose,
by discounting the liability to that date using its best estimate of the historical riskadjusted discount rate(s) that would have applied for that liability over the intervening
period; and,

(iii)

calculate the accumulated depreciation on that amount, as at the date of transition to
IFRS, on the basis of the current estimate of the useful life of the asset, using the
depreciation policy adopted by the entity in accordance with IFRS.

Based on the requirements of IAS 37 and IFRIC 1 as well as the Corporation’s existing
operating practices, the Corporation did not require any additional decommissioning,
restoration or similar liabilities to be recognized at the date of transition.
(c) Determine if an arrangement contains a lease at the date of transition:
A first-time adopter may apply the transitional provisions in IFRS; therefore, a first-time adopter
may determine whether an arrangement existing at the date of transition to IFRS contains a
lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date.
The Corporation adopted this transition provision and assessed arrangements for leases at the
date of transition. It was determined that the Corporation has numerous cancellable operating
leases which are predominantly in the form of encroachment permits required to place
distribution infrastructure assets on rights-of-way or private property. The lease terms are
between one and twenty years and the amounts of these leases were determined to be
immaterial.
(d) Recognize a financial asset relating to a preferred share ownership:
The Corporation is required to recognize all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required
by IFRS. An entity may also designate a financial asset as measured at fair value through profit
or loss in accordance with IFRS 9, on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the
date of transition to IFRS.
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):
The Corporation holds a 10.01% preferred share investment in Enerpower Corporation which
has a value equal to 3.5% of the Corporation’s outstanding purchases from Enerpower
Corporation that had not yet been paid as a dividend.

(e) Derecognize all assets and liabilities not permitted:
Under IFRS 1, an entity is required to derecognize assets or liabilities if IFRS do not permit
recognition.
(i)

Regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities:

The Corporation determined based on the position of the IASB and various industry accounting
opinions, that regulatory assets and liabilities do not meet the definitions contained within the
IFRS Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements. Due to the
absence of a rate regulated standard under IFRS, the Corporation derecognized, at the date of
transition to IFRS, all regulatory assets and liabilities and tax changes resulting from the
derecognition, as an adjustment to opening retained earnings.
(f) Reclassifications:
The Corporation determined that certain items that were recognized under Canadian GAAP as
one type of asset, liability or component of equity should be classified as a different type of
asset, liability or component of equity under IFRS.
Under Canadian GAAP, contributions in aid of construction (“CIAC”) were included as an offset
to PP&E. Under IFRS (IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers), customer contributions
for the acquisition or construction of PP&E are considered to be deferred contributions and will
be recognized over the useful lives of the related asset as distribution revenue.
Deposits that are refundable on demand have been reclassified under IFRS to current assets
and liabilities from long term assets and liabilities under Canadian GAAP.
IFRS does not permit deferred tax assets or liabilities to be classified as current assets or
liabilities. As a result, current deferred income tax assets were reclassified to non-current
deferred income tax assets on the consolidated statement of financial position.
All reclassifications were applied prospectively and had no impact to the Corporation’s financial
statements at the date of transition.
The consolidated statements of financial position as at January 1, 2011 and December 31,
2011 can be reconciled to the amounts reported under Canadian GAAP as follows:
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):

Reconciliation of the consolidated statement of financial position as at January 1, 2011 (transition
date)

Canadian GAAP
January 1, 2011

IFRS
Adjustments

IFRS
January 1,2011

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net (a)
Unbilled revenue
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Deposits (b)
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deposits (b)
Regulatory assets (c)
Deferred tax assets (h)
Total non-current assets
Total assets

$

$

53,568
55,932
67,563
7,872
1,871
186,806
449,367
15,583
20,739
17,140
32,540
535,369
722,175

$

$

233
20,739
20,972
(20,739)
(17,140)
(12,899)
(50,778)
(29,806)

$

53,568
56,165
67,563
7,872
1,871
20,739
207,778
449,367
15,583
19,641
484,591
692,369

$

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable (h)
Advance payments
Deferred revenue
Deposits payable (b)
Future income tax liabilities(h)
Regulatory liability for future income tax assets (h)
Regulatory liabilities(c)
Bonds payable
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Debentures payable
Deposits payable (b)
Employee post-employment benefits (i)
Regulatory liability for future income tax assets (h)
Total non-current liabilities
Shareholders’ Equity:
Share capital
Retained earnings (k)
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
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$

$

90,888
3,418
2,759
150
189
149
39,671
289,811
427,035

$

(43)
20,739
(189)
(149)
(39,671)
(19,313)

$

90,888
3,375
2,759
150
20,739
289,811
407,722

20,739
4,656
32,495
57,890

(20,739)
(160)
(32,495)
(53,394)

4,496
4,496

175,691
61,559
237,250
722,175

42,901
42,901
(29,806)

175,691
104,460
280,151
692,369

$

$
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):

Reconciliation of the consolidated statement of financial position for the year ended December 31,
2011

Canadian GAAP
Dec 31, 2011

IFRS
Adjustments

IFRS
Dec 31, 2011

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net (a)
Unbilled revenue
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Deposits (b)
Deferred tax assets (h)
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment (d,e,f,g)
Intangible assets (d)
Deposits (b)
Regulatory assets (c)
Deferred tax assets (h)
Total non-current assets
Total assets

$

107,127
59,881
59,739
7,527
2,267
2,419
238,960

$

465,403
18,694
22,693
7,719
27,924
542,433
781,393

$

$

299
22,693
(2,419)
20,573
463
(305)
(22,693)
(7,719)
(13,124)
(43,378)
(22,805)

$

$

107,127
60,180
59,739
7,527
2,267
22,693
259,533
465,866
18,389
14,800
499,055
758,588

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable (h)
Advance payments
Deferred revenue (d,f,g)
Regulatory liability for future income tax assets (h)
Regulatory liabilities (c)
Deposits payable (b)
Non-current liabilities:
Debentures payable
Deposits payable (b)
Deferred contributions (f)
Employee post-employment benefits (i)
Regulatory liability for future income tax assets (h)
Total non-current liabilities
Shareholders’ Equity:
Share capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (i)
Retained earnings (k)
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
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$

$

99,564
2,875
2,070
11,143
98
42,691
158,441

$

(971)
(4,290)
(98)
(42,691)
22,693
(25,357)

$

99,564
1,904
2,070
6,853
22,693
133,084

317,864
22,693
5,156
27,865
373,578

(22,693)
4,448
628
(27,865)
(45,482)

317,864
4,448
5,784
328,096

175,691
73,683
249,374
781,393

(615)
48,649
48,034
(22,805)

175,691
(615)
122,332
297,408
758,588

$

$
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First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):

Reconciliation of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December
31, 2011

Canadian GAAP
Dec 31, 2011
Revenue:
Energy sales
Distribution (c,d,g)
Recovery of regulatory accounts (c)
Services
Other income (a)

$

683,116
108,780
7,772
10,332
14,351
824,351

Operating Expenses:
Energy purchases (c)
Employee salaries and benefits (d)
Materials and transportation (d)
Contract services
Other costs (d)
Conservation and demand management costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (d,e,f,g)
Amortization of intangible assets (d)
Amortization of regulatory accounts (c)

Results from operating activities
Non-operating revenue (expense):
Interest income (c)
Interest expense (c)
Interest expense on accrued post-employment benefits (i)

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expense (h)
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income net of income tax:
Remeasurements of the net benefit liability (i)
Income tax charge (h,i)

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

$
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IFRS
Adjustments

$

12,703
(7,772)
65
4,996

IFRS
Dec 31, 2011

$

683,116
121,483
10,332
14,416
829,347

683,116
31,108
6,298
7,111
11,916
9,363
23,863
2,309
7,772
782,856

(4,254)
2,109
(90)
1,071
1,679
(23)
(7,772)
(7,280)

678,862
33,217
6,208
7,111
12,987
9,363
25,542
2,286
775,576

41,495

12,276

53,771

1,431
(17,975)
(16,544)

(193)
728
(262)
273

1,238
(17,247)
(262)
(16,271)

24,951

12,549

37,500

2,205

6,801

9,006

22,746

5,748

28,494

-

(822)
207
(615)

(822)
207
(615)

22,746

$

5,133

$

27,879
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First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):
Explanations of the effect of the transition to IFRS are as follows:
(a) Preferred share ownership:
The Corporation recognized a financial asset equal to 3.5% of the Corporation’s outstanding
purchases from Enerpower Corporation that has not yet been paid as a dividend to the
Corporation. As a result of this change, accounts receivable increased by $233 as at January 1,
2011 and $299 as at December 31, 2011.
(b) Customer deposits reclassification:
Customer deposits have been reclassified from non-current assets and liabilities to current
assets and liabilities under IFRS at the date of transition. These presentation differences
between previous Canadian GAAP and IFRS have no impact on the reported comprehensive
income. The amounts reclassified were $20,739 as at January 1, 2011 and $22,693 as at
December 31, 2011.
(c) Regulatory assets and liabilities:
Due to the absence of a rate regulated standard under IFRS, the Corporation derecognized all
regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities as an adjustment to retained earnings. The
Corporation derecognized the following amounts, excluding tax, under IFRS. These amounts
will be recovered or refunded to/from customers through future distribution rates:

December 31, 2011
$
7,719
(42,691)
$ (34,972)

Regulatory assets
Regulatory liabilities
Total regulatory adjustments

January 1, 2011
$ 17,140
(39,671)
$ (22,531)

(d) Indirect overhead costs:
The Corporation made an adjustment to expense for certain indirect overhead costs that were
being capitalized under Canadian GAAP, such as general and administration costs, which were
determined not to be directly attributable to the asset under IFRS. As a result of this change,
PP&E and intangible assets decreased by $2,196 and $329 respectively as at December 31,
2011. In addition, depreciation of PP&E and amortization of intangible assets decreased by $9
and $23 respectively as at December 31, 2011.
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First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):
(e) Borrowing costs:
An allowance for the cost of funds used during construction was applied and capitalized as a
component of cost of PP&E and intangible assets, where applicable, under Canadian GAAP.
The capitalization rate under IFRS is the weighted average cost of borrowings on the
Corporation’s debt. As the result of this change, PP&E and intangible assets increased by $4
as at December 31, 2011.
(f) Customer contributions:
Under IFRS, CIAC is not included as part of PP&E but is considered to be deferred
contributions and is recognized over the period in which the service is to be provided. As the
result of this requirement, PP&E and deferred contributions increased by $4,448 as at
December 31, 2011. The CIAC of $50 previously recognized as amortization for the year ended
December 31, 2011 has been reclassified as distribution revenue in the statement of
comprehensive income.
(g) Derecognition:
Under IFRS an asset should be derecognized when it is disposed or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. As a result of this change, PP&E has been reduced by
$1,833 as at December 31, 2011.
(h) Deferred tax assets and liabilities:
As a result of derecognizing all regulatory assets and liabilities, the Corporation was also
required to make an adjustment to deferred income taxes. Deferred income tax balances have
been adjusted to reflect the net impact of other timing differences stemming from the adoption
of IFRS. Furthermore, deferred tax balances recorded in current assets and liabilities under
Canadian GAAP were reclassified to non-current assets and liabilities, as deferred taxes are
not permitted to be classified as current under IFRS.

December 31, 2011
Future income tax liabilities current
Regulatory liability for future income tax
current
Deferred tax assets
Regulatory liability for future income tax
non-current
Total deferred tax adjustments

$

$

(2,419)

January 1, 2011
$

189

98

149

(13,124)

(12,899)

27,865
12,420

$

32,495
19,934

The Corporation’s current income taxes payable have been adjusted to reflect the impact of
changes to the Corporation’s profit and total comprehensive income under IFRS.
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):
(i) Employee post-employment benefits other than pensions:
The Corporation elected to adopt IAS 19R. Under IAS 19R, all actuarial gains and losses and
past service costs are immediately recognized. Past service costs are recognized as an
expense and actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. The
effect of this new accounting policy was a decrease to employee post-employment benefits of
$160 as at January 1, 2011 and an increase of $628 as at December 31, 2011.
(j) Explanation of significant changes to the statement of cash flows:
Cash and cash equivalents did not change in the consolidated financial statements of the
Corporation as a result of the transition from Canadian GAAP to IFRS.
The changes in classifications of cash flows under IFRS are mainly due to:


Changes in the consolidated statements of financial position and consolidated statements
of comprehensive income from Canadian GAAP to IFRS due to accounting differences that
have an impact on the Corporation’s financial statements



Separate presentation of interest paid, interest received, and income taxes paid that are
now disclosed within in the body of the consolidated statements of cash flows as required
by IFRS. Canadian GAAP only required these items to be disclosed as supplemental cash
flow information in the notes to the financial statements
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):
(k) Reconciliation of the consolidated statement of changes in equity:

Equity under Canadian GAAP

December 31,
2011
$ 249,374

January 1,
2011
$ 237,250

299
(7,719)
(2,196)
(329)
(13,124)
27,865
(2,419)
98
971
42,691
(628)
4
64
(1,833)
4,290
48,034

233
(17,140)
(12,899)
32,495
189
149
43
39,671
160
42,901

Preferred share ownership (a)
Derecognition of regulatory assets (c)
Indirect overhead cost on PP&E (d)
Indirect overhead costs on intangible assets (d)
Deferred tax asset adjustments (h)
Deferred tax liability adjustment (h)
Future income tax asset/liability (h)
Regulatory liability for future income tax assets (h)
Income tax payable (h)
Derecognition of regulatory liabilities (c)
Employee post-employment benefits (i)
Borrowing costs (e)
Depreciation change due to CIAC and overhead (d,f)
Early derecognition (g)
Deferred revenue (f)
IFRS impact on retained earnings
Equity under IFRS

$

297,408

$

280,151

Exemptions from other IFRS:
The Corporation determined the following IFRS exemptions will not have an impact on the
financial statements at the date of transition:
(a) Share-based payment transactions:
The Corporation does not grant shares or share options to other employees or other parties;
hence this exception is not applicable to the Corporation at the date of transition.
(b) Insurance contracts:
This optional exemption allows a first time adopter to apply IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (“IFRS
4”) requirements prospectively to reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2005. This
exemption is not applicable to the Corporation since IFRS 4 does not address how to account
for insurance contracts by policyholders.
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):
(c) Employee post-employment benefits:
The Corporation elected to adopt the revised IAS 19R and thus the exemptions under IFRS 1
for employee benefits are not applicable to the Corporation at the date of transition.
(d) Cumulative translation differences:
The Corporation occasionally has transactions in a foreign currency. In these rare occasions,
the Corporation’s policy is to translate the currency at the spot rate at the time of the
transaction, and translate the balance using the closing rate at any subsequent reporting date,
with the exchange difference recorded through profit and loss. This exemption will not apply to
the Corporation at the date of transition.
(e) Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates:
Based on this exemption, a first time adopter that chooses to measure these investments at
cost may choose to measure the carrying amount of the investments at the date of transition at
an amount equal to:
i. cost as determined in accordance with IAS 27; or
ii. deemed cost, which is either fair value or the previous Canadian GAAP carrying amount.
The Corporation accounts for its investments in subsidiaries by consolidating and does not
have any interest in a jointly controlled or associate entity; hence this exemption is not
applicable to the Corporation at the date of transition.
(f) Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates:
This exemption applies to subsidiaries that adopt IFRS later than the parent. The Corporation
and its subsidiaries will adopt IFRS at the same time. This exemption is not applicable to the
Corporation.
(g) Compound financial instruments:
A compound instrument is a financial instrument that from the issuer’s perspective includes
both a liability and an equity component. If the liability component is no longer outstanding at
the day of transition, IFRS 1 through this optional exemption permits a first time adopter to
ignore the split between cumulative interest portion of retained earnings and the original equity
component. Since the Corporation does not have any compound financial instruments, this
exemption is not applicable at the date of transition.
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5.

First Time Adoption of IFRS (continued):
(h) Designation of previously recognized financial instruments:
Under this exemption, a first time adopter is allowed to designate at the transition date any
financial asset or liability at fair value through profit and loss or designate them as available for
sale, regardless of the classification under Canadian GAAP.
The Corporation made the designation that financial assets and liabilities would be measured at
fair value through profit and loss under Canadian GAAP; hence this exemption is not applicable
to the Corporation at the date of transition.
(i) A financial asset or an intangible asset accounted for in accordance with IFRIC 12:
The Corporation has not entered into any service concession arrangements. None of the
Corporation’s current service arrangements meet the scope criteria set out in this standard;
hence this exemption is not applicable to the Corporation at the date of transition.
(j) Borrowing costs:
The Corporation has elected to use the deemed cost election under IFRS 1. Since the
Corporation will be using Canadian GAAP ending balances for the opening IFRS PP&E and
intangible assets values, this borrowing cost IFRS 1 exemption will not apply at the date of
transition.
(k) Transfers of assets from customers:
The Corporation has elected to use the deemed cost election under IFRS 1. Since the
Corporation will be using Canadian GAAP ending balances for the opening PP&E and
intangible assets values, the IFRS 1 exemption for transfer of assets from customers will not
apply at the date of transition.
(l) Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments:
The Corporation does not issue equity and would not extinguish any financial liabilities by
issuing equity. This exemption is not applicable to the Corporation at the date of transition.
(m) Severe hyperinflation:
The Corporation operates only in the province of Ontario, Canada. Canada does not display
the characteristics of a hyper-inflationary economy. This exemption under IFRS 1 is not
applicable to the Corporation at the date of transition.
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6.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at the
bank, cash on hand and short term investments with a maturity of 90 days or less from the date
of purchase, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Cash
Short term investments
Total cash and cash equivalents

December 31,
2012
$
57,441
15,283
$
72,724

December 31,
2011
$
102,083
5,044
$
107,127

January 1,
2011
$
48,463
5,105
$
53,568

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the statement of
financial position date. There are no restrictions, pledges or limitations to the use of the cash
and cash equivalents.

7.

Accounts receivable:

The components of accounts receivable, net are as follows:
December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

Trade receivables
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

$

56,500
(3,299)

$

Trade receivables, net

$

53,201

Receivables due from related parties (note 23)
Other receivables
Total accounts receivable, net

$

51,255

3,358
8,680
$

Of which:
Not yet due
Past due 1 day but not more than 15
Past due 15 days but not more than 45
Past due 45 days but not more than 75
Past due 75 days but not more than 105
Past due more than 105 days
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts

65,239

$

32

65,239

$

52,836
(2,536)

$

50,300

2,621
6,304
$

52,946
6,227
4,797
1,385
732
2,451
(3,299)

Total accounts receivable, net

54,928
(3,673)

January 1,
2011

60,180

3,093
2,772
$

33,353
17,647
5,691
1,931
1,335
3,896
(3,673)
$

60,180

56,165

37,201
8,513
6,207
1,721
1,354
3,705
(2,536)
$

56,165
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7.

Accounts receivable (continued):
The allowance for doubtful accounts as at December 31, 2012 was 4.8% (December 31, 2011
– 5.8%, January 1, 2011 – 4.3%) of the total accounts receivable which includes accounts
receivable, that are not yet due or past due, that the Corporation has deemed to be impaired.

8.

Inventory:
The amount of inventory consumed by the Corporation and recognized as an expense during 2012
was $1,849 (2011 - $2,682). The amount of inventory that was written down due to obsolescence
in 2012 was $9 (2011 - $20).

9.

Deposits:
The following outlines the deposits and letters of credit/guarantees of the Corporation posted as
security. The amounts are comprised of cash and cash equivalents in the form of deposits and
letters of credit/letters of guarantee, under which the Corporation is contingently liable.

Customer deposits
Security with the IESO
Security with the City of
Brampton
Security with the City of
Mississauga

December 31, 2012
Cash and
Letters of
cash
credit/
equivalents guarantees
$ 19,732
$
11,450

December 31, 2011
Cash and
Letters of
cash
credit/
equivalents guarantees
$ 22,693
$
10,588

January 1, 2011
Cash and
Letter of
cash
credit/
equivalents guarantees
$ 20,739
$
10,588

-

4,853

-

5,026

-

5,026

$ 19,732

350
$ 16,653

$ 22,693

$ 15,614

$ 20,739

$ 15,614

(a) Customer Deposits:
The Corporation collects cash and cash equivalents as deposits from certain customers to
reduce credit risk.
(b) Security with the Independent Electricity System Operator:
Entities that purchase electricity in Ontario through the Independent Electricity System Operator
("IESO") are required to post security to mitigate the risk of their default on their expected
activity in the market. The IESO could draw on this security if the Corporation failed to make
payment required by a default notice issued by the IESO. The Corporation has posted a letter
of credit as security in the amount of $11,450 as at December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011 $10,588, January 1, 2011 - $10,588).
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9.

Deposits (continued):
(c) Security with the City of Brampton:
The Corporation has posted letters of credit in the amount of $4,853 as at December 31, 2012
(December 31, 2011 - $5,026, January 1, 2011 - $5,026) relating to contracts with the City of
Brampton to provide routine and emergency maintenance of street lighting and related
services. The City of Brampton could draw on this security by issuing a certificate
demonstrating that the Corporation has failed to fulfill its obligations related to these contracts.
(d) Security with the City of Mississauga:
The Corporation has posted a letter of credit in the amount of $350 as at December 31, 2012
(December 31, 2011 - $nil, January 1, 2011 - $nil) relating to a contract with the City of
Mississauga for the installation of Light Emitting Diode (“LED”) streetlight luminaires and
monitoring system components. The City of Mississauga could draw on this security by issuing
a certificate demonstrating that the Corporation has failed to fulfill its obligations related to this
contract.

10.

Property, Plant and Equipment

PP&E consists of the following as at December 31, 2012:
December 31,
Additions/
2011
Depreciation
Cost
Distribution system
$
352,141 $
28,395
Distribution station equipment
54,071
1,775
Other PP&E
57,318
9,821
Buildings and fixtures
14,822
17,556
Land
4,069
5,823
Construction in progress
4,239
1,220

Disposals/
Retirements

December 31,
2012

$

(1,814)
(165)
(1,750)
-

$

378,722
55,681
65,389
32,378
9,892
5,459

Subtotal

$

486,660

$

64,590

$

(3,729)

$

547,521

$

(12,590)
(1,684)
(5,988)
(532)
-

$

(13,127)
(1,762)
(6,555)
(852)

$

102
7
691
-

$

(25,615)
(3,439)
(11,852)
(1,384)

Subtotal

$

(20,794)

$

(22,296)

$

800

$

(42,290)

Carrying amount

$

465,866

$

42,294

$

(2,929)

$

505,231

Accumulated depreciation
Distribution system
Distribution station equipment
Other PP&E
Buildings and fixtures
Land
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10.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued):
PP&E consists of the following as at December 31, 2011:
January 1, 2011
Additions/
(Transfers)
Depreciation

Cost
Distribution system
Distribution station equipment
Other PP&E
Buildings and fixtures
Land
Construction in progress

Disposals/
Retirements

December 31,
2011

$

325,963
49,454
50,832
12,451
4,070
6,597

$

29,552
4,715
7,874
2,371
(2,358)

$

(3,374)
(98)
(1,388)
(1)
-

$

352,141
54,071
57,318
14,822
4,069
4,239

$

449,367

$

42,154

$

(4,861)

$

486,660

$

-

$ (12,942)
(1,689)
(6,325)
(532)
-

$

352
5
337
-

$

(12,590)
(1,684)
(5,988)
(532)
-

Subtotal

$

-

$ (21,488)

$

694

$

(20,794)

Carrying amount

$

449,367

$

$

(4,167)

$

465,866

Subtotal
Accumulated depreciation
Distribution system
Distribution station equipment
Other PP&E
Buildings and fixtures
Land

20,666

During 2012, $1,869 (2011 - $1,833), of the carrying amount of PP&E which have not been
sold, have been derecognized before the end of their estimated useful lives, and have been
recorded as depreciation expense on the statement of comprehensive income.
During 2012, $952 (2011 - $908) of the carrying amount of old conventional meters were
derecognized before the end of their useful lives due to the smart metering deployment
program. These costs would have been included as part of regulatory assets under Canadian
GAAP. Under IFRS, this amount has been recorded as depreciation expense on the statement
of comprehensive income.
During 2012, $650 (2011 - $289), have been included to the additions to PPE representing the
borrowing cost attributable to the assets during construction, and allocated to the qualifying
asset at the weighted average cost of borrowings of 5.091% (January - April 2011 – 6.498%;
May - December 2011 – 5.091%).
For the period ended December 31, 2012, accrued liabilities relating to PP&E in the amount of
$6,004 (December 31, 2011 - $6,394) have been included in additions to PP&E.
PP&E and intangible asset purchase commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2012 total
$11,760 (December 31, 2011 - $12,800, January 1, 2011 - $7,524).
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11.

Intangible Assets:
Intangible assets consists of the following as at December 31, 2012:
December 31,
Additions/
Disposals/
2011
Amortization
Retirements

December 31,
2012

Cost
Easements
Computer software
Software in development

$

333
19,717
526

$

191
2,447
478

$

(75)
-

$

524
22,089
1,004

Subtotal

$

20,576

$

3,116

$

(75)

$

23,617

$

(2,187)

$

(2,852)

$

75

$

(4,964)

Accumulated
amortization
Easements
Computer software
Subtotal

$

(2,187)

$

(2,852)

$

75

$

(4,964)

Carrying amount

$

18,389

$

264

$

-

$

18,653

Intangible assets consist of the following as at December 31, 2011:
January 1,
Additions/
Disposals/
2011
Amortization
Retirements

December 31,
2011

Cost
Easements
Computer software
Software in development

$

36
13,743
1,804

$

297
6,073
(1,278)

$

(99)
-

$

333
19,717
526

Subtotal

$

15,583

$

5,092

$

(99)

$

20,576

$

-

$

(2,286)

$

99

$

(2,187)

Subtotal

$

-

$

(2,286)

$

99

$

(2,187)

Carrying amount

$

15,583

$

2,806

$

-

$

18,389

Accumulated
amortization
Easements
Computer software

During 2012, $33 (2011 - $114) has been included in the additions to intangible assets,
representing the borrowing costs attributable to the assets during the development phase and
allocated to the qualifying asset at weighted average cost of borrowings of 5.091% (January April 2011 – 6.498%; May - December 2011 – 5.091%).
For the period ended December 31, 2012, accrued liabilities relating to intangible assets in the
amount of $876 (December 31, 2011 - $730) have been included in additions to intangible
assets.
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12.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Major components of accounts payable and accrued liabilities for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 consist of the following:
December 31,
2012

Amounts due to the IESO for energy purchases
Trade payables due to related parties (note 23)
Other trade payables
Accrued expenses
Other non-trade payables
Total accounts payable

13.

$

$

December 31,
2011

59,157
100
8,720
28,895
10,832
107,704

January 1,
2011

$

58,893
34
4,390
26,434
9,813

$

63,438
33
3,990
20,501
2,926

$

99,564

$

90,888

Income taxes:
The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as
follows:
December 31,
2012
Current income tax expense:
Expense for the year
Benefit arising from unrecognized tax loss
Utilization of future timing differences in the current period
Total current income tax expense
Deferred income tax expense:
Reversal of temporary differences
Increase in future tax rates on existing timing differences
Reduction of future timing differences
Total deferred income tax expense
Total income tax (recovery) expense

$

$

$
$

3,527
(98)
(4,969)
(1,540)

December 31,
2011
$

$

5,097
(563)
(577)
3,957

(712)
(930)
2,550
908

$

$

4,863
(65)
251
5,049

(632)

$

9,006

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount that would have been recorded using the
combined federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate. A reconciliation between the statutory and
effective tax rates is provided as follows:
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13.

Income taxes (continued):
December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

26.50%

28.25%

Federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate
Income before provision for income taxes

$

10,333

Provision for income taxes at statutory rate
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
Tax effect of non-capital losses for which no benefit
has been recorded
Increase in future tax rates on existing timing
differences
Other timing differences between accounting net
income and net income for tax purposes
Provision for income taxes
Effective income tax rate

$

$

37,500

2,738

10,594

(98)

(563)

(930)

(66)

(2,342)

(959)

(632)
(6.12%)

$

9,006
24.02%

Due to federal and provincial enacted corporate income tax rate changes, the statutory income tax
rate for the Corporation decreased from 28.25% in 2011 to 26.50% in 2012.
14.

Deferred tax assets:
Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income
tax purposes. The net deferred tax asset consists of the following:

Deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities
Net Deferred income tax asset

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

$

$

$

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Timing of refund of energy variances
Employee post-employment benefits other than
pensions
Deferred revenue
Other temporary differences

$

14,800
14,800

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

$

$

17,806
(9,299)
1,796
3,619
82

$

38

14,004
14,004

14,004

22,673
(10,937)

January 1,
2011
$
$

January 1,
2011
$

1,446
1,705
(87)
$

14,800

19,641
19,641

26,288
(8,055)
1,166
30
212

$

19,641
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14.

Deferred tax assets (continued):
At December 31, 2012, certain other subsidiaries have non-capital loss carryforwards totalling $nil
(2011 - $372).

15.

Deferred Distribution Revenue:
As of January 1, 2011, the Corporation, under IFRS, revised its capitalization policy and the
useful lives of its depreciable assets based on an independent evaluation. The revised useful
life estimates were adopted prospectively and extended the lives of many depreciable assets.
Since depreciation expense is a component of approved distribution rates, Enersource Hydro
deferred distribution revenue equal to the net decrease in depreciation expense. The amount
of distribution revenue not earned that has been included in the statement of financial position
for the year as deferred revenue was $6,528 as at December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011 $6,444).

16.

Debentures and Bonds Payable:

4.52 % Series A Debentures due April
29, 2021

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

$

$

110,000

Deferred debt issue cost (net of
accumulated amortization of $109)(Dec.
31, 2011 $43)
5.30 % Series B Debentures due April
29, 2041
Deferred debt issue cost (net of
accumulated amortization of $34 )(Dec.
31, 2011 $13)
6.29% Borealis-Enersource Series
Bonds, with Tranche 1, due May 1, 2011
Deferred debt issue cost (net of
accumulated amortization of $4,147)
Net debentures and bonds payable

$

January 1, 2011

110,000

$

-

(682)

(748)

-

210,000

210,000

-

(1,367)

(1,388)

-

-

-

290,000

-

-

(189)

317,951

$

317,864

$

289,811

The Borealis-Enersource Series Bonds matured on May 3, 2011. On April 29, 2011, the
Corporation completed its private placement debt offering of $320,000. The placement
comprised of $110,000 of Series A, 10-year debenture with fixed coupon rate of 4.52%, and
$210,000 of Series B 30-year debentures with fixed coupon rate of 5.30%. The net proceeds of
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16.

Debentures and Bonds Payable (continued):
the debentures were used to repay the amount owed by the corporation to Borealis
Infrastructure trust and the remaining balance was used for general corporate purposes.
Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 included $16,141 (December 31, 2011
- $17,091) in respect of interest on the debt. The amortization of the debt issue cost for the year
ended December 31, 2012 was $87 (December 31, 2011 - $245).
The Corporation has the following material covenants associated with its long-term debt:
(a) The Corporation will duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid payments of principal and
interest to each holder of the debentures.
(b) The Corporation will, and will cause each designated subsidiary to maintain its corporate
existence (unless all of its assets are or have been conveyed to the Corporation or another
designated subsidiary), and will carry on and conduct its business in a proper and efficient
manner.
(c) The Corporation will provide to the Trustee copies of (i) within 120 days of each fiscal year end
of the Corporation, annual audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation
together with a report of the Corporation’s auditors thereon; (ii) within 60 days of the end of the
first, second and third quarters of the Corporation’s fiscal year, interim consolidated financial
statements. The corporation’s first interim consolidated financial report prepared in accordance
with IFRS for the first quarter in which such report is required to be prepared, which may be
provided within 90 days of the end of such quarter.
(d) The Corporation will, and will cause each Designated Subsidiary to, from time to time pay or
cause to be paid all taxes (including transfer taxes), rates, levies, payments in lieu of taxes,
assessments (ordinary or extraordinary), government fees or dues lawfully levied, assessed or
imposed upon or in respect of its respective property or any part thereof or upon its income and
profits as and when the same become due and payable and to withhold and remit any amounts
required to be withheld by it from payments due to others and remit the same to any
government or agency thereof.
(e) The Corporation will not, and will not permit any Designated Subsidiary to, create, assume or
suffer to exist any Security Interest, other than permitted encumbrances, on any of its assets to
secure any obligation, unless at the same time it secures equally and rateably therewith all the
debentures issued pursuant to the Trust Indenture then outstanding.
(f) The Corporation shall not issue, incur or become liable for obligations that exceed 75% of the
total consolidated capitalization.
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(g) The Corporation may not amalgamate or consolidate with or merge into any other Person, or
permit any other Person to amalgamate or consolidate with or merge into with the Corporation,
16.

Debentures and Bonds Payable (continued):
or directly or indirectly transfer, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its
property or assets. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Designated Subsidiary shall be permitted
to merge with another entity provided that, after giving effect to such merger, it continues to be
a Designated Subsidiary.
(h) No default or event of default shall have occurred and be continuing, or shall occur.
The Corporation is in compliance with all credit agreement covenants and limitations associated
with its debt.

17.

Deferred Contributions:
The continuity of deferred customer contributions in aid of construction (“CIAC”) of PP&E is as
follows:

December 31,
2012

18.

December 31,
2011

January 1,
2011

Deferred contributions, net, beginning of year
CIAC received
CIAC recognized as distribution revenue

$

4,448
1,248
(112)

$

4,498
(50)

$

-

Deferred contributions, net, end of year

$

5,584

$

4,448

$

-

Employee Post-Employment Benefits:
The Corporation elected to adopt the amended IAS 19R Employee Benefits at the date of
transition. The Corporation applied the revised standard retrospectively and recognized all
past service costs (unrecognized plan amendment costs) and all unrealized actuarial gains
and losses at the date of transition. At the date of transition, all remeasurements included in
accumulated other comprehensive income were reclassified to retained earnings.
The Corporation’s retirement plan is comprised of a defined contribution plan.
In addition, the Corporation provides other employee post-employment benefits, primarily life,
health and dental coverage, on a shared basis.
(a) OMERS pension plan:
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The defined contribution plan is mandatory for all full-time employees of the Corporation from
day one of employment. Under the terms of the defined contribution plan, employees contribute

18.

Employee Post-Employment Benefits (continued):
a percentage of eligible employee earnings per year. The Corporation makes contributions for
each contributing employee in amounts equal to the employee contribution. The defined
contribution plan is fully vested from day one of employment.
The most recently available OMERS annual report is for the year ended December 31, 2011,
which reported that the plan was 88.7% funded, with an unfunded liability of $7,290,000. This
unfunded liability will likely result in future payments by participating employers and members.
The Corporation’s contributions could be increased if other entities withdraw from the plan.
The Corporation expensed contributions to OMERS of $3,564 (December 31, 2011 – $2,953)
for the year ended December 31, 2012. These amounts are included under operating expenses
on the statement of comprehensive income.
(b) Employee post-employment benefits other than pensions:
Employee post-employment benefits other than pensions are subject to periodic actuarial
valuations. The Corporation has a December 31 measurement date. A valuation of the
employee post-employment benefits was performed as of December 31, 2012. The next
valuation of the employee post-employment benefits will be performed as at December 31,
2013.

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year
Current service costs
Interest on accrued employee post-employment benefits
Benefits paid
Remeasurements of the post-employment net benefit liability
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year

December 31,
2012
$ 5,784
479
260
(169)
423
$ 6,777

December 31,
2011
$ 4,496
367
262
(163)
822
5,784

December 31,
2012
$ 479
260

December 31,
2011
$ 367
262

739

$

Total expense recognized in profit or loss:

Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Total Expense

$

Actuarial gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive income:
December 31,
2012
Cumulative amount, January 1
$
822
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December 31,
2011
$
-
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(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
Recognized during the period
Cumulative amount, December 31

18.

$

423
1,245

822
$

822

Employee Post-Employment Benefits (continued):
Actuarial assumptions:
December 31,
2012
4.25%
3.75%

Discount rate (beginning of year)
Discount rate (end of year)
Health care cost increases
Dental cost increases
Rate of compensation increase

8.50%
4.00%
3.00%

December 31,
2011
5.50%
5.50%
9.00%
4.00%
3.00%

A 1% increase in the assumed discount rate would result in the defined benefit obligation
decreasing to $5,864. A 1% decrease in the assumed discount rate would result in the defined
benefit obligation increasing to $7,686.
The Corporation expects $4,057 in contributions to be paid to its defined benefit plan in 2013.

19.

Share Capital:
December 31,
2012
Authorized:
Unlimited, Class A shares, voting
1,000 Class B shares, no-voting
100 Class C shares, voting
Issued:
180,555,562 Class A shares
1,000 Class B shares
100 Class C shares

December 31,
2011

January 1,
2011

$

155,628
1
20,062

$

155,628
1
20,062

$

155,628
1
20,062

$

175,691

$

175,691

$

175,691

The holders of Class A shares and Class C shares are entitled to receive notice of, to attend,
and to vote at all general and special meetings of the Corporation’s shareholders. The holders
of Class B shares are not entitled to vote at any meeting of the Corporation’s shareholders
(except as required by law) and are only entitled to receive notice of special meetings called to
consider certain fundamental changes. Holders of Class A shares are entitled to one vote per
share. Holders of Class C shares are entitled to such number of votes in respect of each Class
C share as will entitle the holders of the Class C shares, as a class, to the proportion of the
total number of votes of all shareholders entitled to vote at any such meeting that the Class C
total base equity is of the aggregate regulated rate base equity of the Corporation’s and its
subsidiaries.
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The holders of the Class A shares and holders of the Class C shares, in priority to the holders
of the Class B shares, are entitled to receive, if, as and when declared by the Corporation’s

19.

Share Capital (continued):
Board of Directors, concurrent cumulative preferential dividends at a rate per annum equal to
the regulated rate of return on the rate base equity represented by each such class of shares.
Once these preferential dividend entitlements have been satisfied, holders of each class of
shares are entitled to receive, on a concurrent basis with each other class of shares, additional
dividends if, as and when declared by the Corporation’s Board of Directors and in such
amounts and payable in such manner as may be determined from time to time by the
Corporation’s Board of Directors. Holders of the Class A shares and the Class C shares are
together entitled to 60% of any such additional dividends, which are to be allocated between
the holders of each such class of shares in proportion to the rate base equity represented by
each such class. Holders of the Class B shares are entitled to 40% of any such additional
dividends. Class A, B and C shares have no par value.
Dividends may be declared by the Board of Directors through a resolution. In 2012, a dividend
of $13,648 (2011 - $10,622) was declared and paid to the Shareholders of the Corporation.

20.

Change in non-cash working capital:
December 31,
2012
Operating Activities, changes related to:
Accounts receivable
Unbilled revenue
Inventory
Prepaid and deposits
Accounts payable
Advance payments
Deferred revenue
Accrued PP&E and intangible assets
Increase in non-cash operating working capital
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$

(5,025)
376
(947)
(111)
8,031
8
7,015
244
9,591

December 31,
2011
$

(3,957)
7,824
345
(396)
8,753
(689)
6,703
(1,509)
$ 17,074

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

21.

Contingencies, Commitments and Guarantees:
The Corporation is party to a number of disputes and lawsuits in the normal course of business.
The Corporation believes that the ultimate liability arising from these matters will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, no provision for any
liability has been made in these financial statements.
In the normal course of operations, the Corporation executes agreements that provide for
indemnification to third parties in transactions such as service agreements, leases and
purchases of goods. Under these agreements, the Corporation agrees to indemnify the
counterparty against loss or liability arising from the acts or omissions of the Corporation in
relation to the agreement.
(a) Insurance Claims:
The Corporation is a member of the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange ("MEARIE"). A reciprocal insurance exchange may be defined as a group of
persons formed for the purpose of exchanging reciprocal contracts of indemnity or
inter-insurance with each other. MEARIE is licensed to provide general liability insurance to its
members.
Insurance premiums charged to each member consist of a levy per thousand dollars of service
revenue subject to a credit or surcharge based on each member's claims experience. Current
liability coverage is provided to a level of $24,000 per occurrence. The Corporation has also
obtained additional general liability insurance of $10,000 per occurrence through Alternative
Risk Services.
Enersource Hydro has been jointly named as a defendant in several actions. No provision has
been made for these potential liabilities as Enersource Hydro expects that these claims are
adequately covered by its insurance.
(b) Environmental:
The Corporation is subject to Canadian federal, provincial and municipal environmental
regulations. As part of the Corporation's risk mitigation strategy, environmental assessments
and environmental remediation are underway at various sites. The Corporation records a
liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with testing and remediation of
contaminated lands at various municipal substations and neighbouring properties.
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Actual future environmental expenditures may vary from these estimates. As at December 31,
2012, the Corporation provided $370 (December 31, 2011 - $160, January 1, 2011 - $217) for
testing and future remediation.

21.

Contingencies, Commitments and Guarantees (continued):
(c) Operating Lease Commitments:
The Corporation has entered into a commercial lease arrangement on a premise which is
recognized and reported as part of other costs in the statement of comprehensive income.
For the period ended December 31, 2012, the Corporation recognized minimum lease
payments of $139 (December 31, 2011 - $133) in the statement of comprehensive income.
The lease has a life of one year with yearly renewal options. There are no restrictions placed
upon the Corporation by entering into this lease. As at December 31, 2012, the Corporation’s
committed future minimum annual lease payments under operating leases were $132 for 2012.
The future minimum lease commitments would change depending on the decision to renew the
agreement. The Corporation has numerous cancellable operating leases which are
predominantly in the form of encroachment permits required to place distribution infrastructure
assets on a rights-of-way or private property. The lease terms are between one and twenty
years, and the amounts of these leases are immaterial and have been included in other costs in
the statement of comprehensive income.

22.

Risk Management and Financial Instruments:
The private placement debt offering, having a principal amount of $320,000 as at December 31,
2012 (December 31, 2011 - $320,000), has a fair value of $384,986 (December 31, 2011 $376,766).
Exposure to market risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the
Corporation's business.
(a) Market Risk:
Market risk refers primarily to risk of loss that results from changes in commodity prices, foreign
exchange rates and interest rates. The Corporation does not have commodity risk due to the
flow through nature of energy purchases and costs and its foreign exchange risk is not
considered material since the Corporation's exposure is limited to U.S. dollar cash and cash
equivalents holdings of $96 as at December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011 - $4, January 1,
2011 - $103).
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Distribution rates and charges are currently based on a revenue requirement less other income,
which includes interest income. The difference between actual interest income earned by the
Corporation and the interest revenue reduction approved by the OEB may have a negative
impact on the results of operations.
The Corporation minimizes interest rate risk by issuing long-term fixed rate debt.

22.

Risk Management and Financial Instruments (continued):
(b) Credit Risk:
Financial assets create credit risk that counterparties will fail to discharge an obligation, causing
a financial loss.
The Corporation manages counterparties credit risk through various techniques including,
limiting total exposure levels with individual counterparties consistent with the Corporation's
policies, and monitoring the financial condition of counterparties. Short-term investments held
as at December 31, 2012, met the credit exposure limits specified under the Corporation's
Investment Policy.
The Corporation's distribution revenue is earned on a broad base of customers principally
located in Mississauga. As a result, the Corporation did not earn a significant amount of
revenue from any individual customer. As at December 31, 2012, there were no significant
balances of accounts receivable due from any single customer.
Management believes that the credit risk of accounts receivable is not significant due to the
following reasons:
i.

There is a broad base of customers with no single customer that accounts for revenue or
an accounts receivable balance in excess of 10% of the respective balance in either year.

ii.

Enersource Hydro, as permitted by the OEB's Retail Settlement and Distribution System
Code, may obtain a security deposit or letter of credit from customers to mitigate risk of
payment default.

iii.

The percentage of accounts receivable that is past due for more than 75 days is
approximately 4.9% (2011 – 8.7%) of the total net outstanding balance. (See note 7)

iv.

Enersource Hydro included an amount for accounts receivable write-offs within operating
expense for rate setting purposes.

(c) Liquidity Risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they come due. Short-term liquidity is provided through cash and cash equivalents on hand,
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funds from operations, as well as an established $50,000 banking line of credit, if required.
Short-term liquidity is expected to be sufficient to fund normal operating requirements.
The Borealis-Enersource Series Bonds matured in May, 2011 and were refinanced through a
private placement effective April 29, 2011. The debentures due on the private placement
mature in 2021 and 2041.

22.

Risk Management and Financial Instruments (continued):
The Corporation has contractual obligations in the normal course of business; future minimum
undiscounted contractual maturities are as follows:

23.

Financial Liabilities

Due within 1
year

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Debentures payable (interest and principal)

$

107,704
16,097

Total

$

123,801

Due between 1
and 5 years

Due past 5
years

80,484

590,764

$

80,484

$

590,764

Related Party Transactions:
The Corporation's operations include the provision of electricity and services to its principal
shareholder, the City. Electricity is billed to the City at the prices and terms as any other
Enersource Hydro customer not with an electricity retailer. Street lighting maintenance and
construction services are provided at an exchange amount, being that amount agreed to by the
parties. A summary of amounts charged by the Corporation to the City is as follows:
December 31,
2012
Electrical energy
Street lighting maintenance and construction
Street lighting energy

$

10,031
5,726
6,242

December 31,
2011
$

9,415
4,589
6,315

At December 31, 2012, accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $100 (December 31,
2011 - $34, January 1, 2011 - $33) due to the City and accounts receivable include $3,358
(December 31, 2011 - $2,621, January 1, 2011 - $3,093) due from the City.
At December 31, 2012, the Corporation incurred property taxes which are paid to the City in the
amount of $948 (December 31, 2011 - $820).
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The Corporation charged Borealis $9 for the year ended December 31, 2012 (December 31,
2011 - $9) for an access agreement. These transactions were recorded at the exchange
amount being the amount agreed to by the parties.
No Director had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any contract of
significance in relation to the Corporation’s business.

23.

Related Party Transactions (continued):
The following compensation has been provided to the key management personnel of the
Corporation and members of the Board of Directors (Directors Honorarium), which have the
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity,
directly or indirectly.
December 31,
2012
Salaries and short term employee benefits
Retirement OMERS contributions
Other compensation
Directors Honorarium

$

$

24.

2,142
204
48
179
2,573

December 31,
2011
$

$

2,231
183
52
133
2,599

Divisional information:
The Corporation consists primarily of two operating divisions, regulated operations and nonregulated operations. Non-regulated operations are primarily comprised of engineering design,
construction and maintenance services for utilities and developers and street lighting design
and maintenance services.
The designation of activities to the two operating divisions is based on a combination of
regulatory status and the nature of the products and services provided. The accounting policies
followed by the divisions are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies.
Financial information that adjusts IFRS results to show the effect of rate regulation is used by
the Corporation’s Board of Directors, as well as members of key Management having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or
indirectly. This group is determined to be the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and it
assesses operating performance principally on the basis of earnings adjusted for regulatory
items as shown in the divisional information disclosed below.
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If regulatory accounting was permitted under IFRS the Corporation’s regulatory assets would
represent certain amounts receivable from customers in the future and costs that have been
deferred for accounting purposes because it is probable that they will be recovered in future
rates. If regulatory accounting was permitted under IFRS the Corporation’s regulatory liabilities
would represent costs with respect to non-distribution market related charges and variances in
recoveries that are expected to be settled through future distribution rates.

24.

Divisional Information (continued):

Year ended December 31, 2012

2012
Energy revenues
Distribution revenue
Other revenues

Enersource Adjustment
Hydro
regulatory
Regulated
activities
$

Nonregulated

Eliminations
(459)
(459)

$ 711,877
91,894
26,618
830,389

711,877
112,555
17,948
842,380

(20,661)

9,129
9,129

(711,877)
(65,219)
(27,894)

7,350
(335)
75

(8,069)
(149)

459
-

(704,527)
(73,164)
(27,968)

1,493
(16,733)

(183)
771

331
(76)

-

1,641
(16,038)

22,150

(12,983)

1,166

-

10,333

Income tax (recovery) expense

2,668

(3,503)

203

-

(632)

Other comprehensive income

(292)

-

(19)

Energy purchases
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Interest income
Interest expense
Profit before income tax expense

Comprehensive income at
December 31

$

19,190

(20,661)

Total

$

(9,480)

$

(311)

944

-

$

10,654

Nonregulated

Eliminations
(369)
(369)

$ 683,116
121,483
24,748
829,347

369

(678,862)
(68,886)

Year ended December 31, 2011

2011
Energy revenues
Distribution revenue
Other revenues

Energy purchases
Operating expenses

Enersource Adjustment
Hydro
regulatory
Regulated
activities
$

683,116
113,121
14,291
810,528

8,362
8,362

10,826
10,826

(683,116)
(59,716)

4,254
(861)

(8,678)
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Depreciation and amortization
(27,857)

163

(134)

-

(27,828)

1,154
(18,167)

(193)
725

277
(67)

-

1,238
(17,509)

22,826

12,450

2,224

-

37,500

Income tax expense (recovery)

1,838

7,051

117

-

9,006

Other comprehensive income

(577)

-

(38)

Interest income
Interest expense
Profit before income tax expense

Comprehensive income at
December 31
24.

$

20,411

$

5,399

$

(615)

2,069

-

$

27,879

Divisional Information (continued):
Total assets for the Corporation’s two operating divisions are as follows:
December 31,
2012
Enersource Hydro regulated
Non-regulated

December 31,
2011

January 1,
2011

$

737,286
30,822

$

728,489
30,099

$

663,705
28,664

$

768,108

$

758,588

$

692,369

Total liabilities for the Corporation’s two operating divisions are as follows:

December 31,
2012
Enersource Hydro regulated
Non-regulated

December 31,
2011

January 1,
2011

$

468,547
5,147

$

457,076
4,104

$

407,872
4,346

$

473,694

$

461,180

$

412,218

Total regulatory balances that have been derecognized under IFRS that will be recovered or
refunded through future distribution rates are as follows:

Regulatory assets
Regulatory liabilities
Net regulatory
liabilities

January 1,
2011
$ 17,140

2011
activity
$ (9,421)

December 31,
2011
$ 7,719

2012
activity
$
2,248

December 31,
2012
$
9,967

(39,671)

(3,020)

(42,691)

8,737

(33,954)

$ (22,531)

$( 12,441)

$ (34,972)

$

10,985

$

(23,987)

*Net regulatory liabilities excluding timing differences of taxes as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011
do not include smart meter deferral of $966 and $(9) respectively. Net regulatory liabilities as at December 31, 2012
does not include the write off of a PILS regulatory balance of $1,032.
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In a rate regulated environment, there is normally a requirement from the regulator to the utility
to either reduce or increase rates in a future period. Under regulatory accounting, utilities
account for the impact of rate regulation through the recognition of regulatory assets and
liabilities, which is the deferral of costs (revenues) to a future period to match with the higher
(lower) rates recovered in that period, usually as a result of a decision approved by the
regulator.

24.

Divisional Information (continued):
In the absence of a rate regulated standard under IFRS, the Corporation
assets and liabilities arising from rate regulated activities. Since the
regulation have not changed from the adoption of IFRS, the CODM will
operating performance principally on the basis of earnings adjusted for the
regulatory activities:

does not recognize
economics of rate
continue to assess
following significant

(i) Retail settlement variances are caused by the difference between the actual price of the
electricity commodity throughput and the prices set by the OEB. Specifically, these
amounts include variances between the amounts charged by Hydro One and the IESO for
the operation of the electricity markets and grid, as well as various wholesale market
settlement charges and transmission charges as compared to the amount billed to
consumers based on the OEB-approved rates. Under regulatory accounting, the
Corporation would have adjusted energy purchases for these variances. These variances
will now be reflected as an increase or decrease to distribution revenue in the future under
IFRS.
(ii) Unearned revenue and costs associated with the Enersource Hydro’s smart meter
program, and costs relating to stranded conventional meters would have been deferred
under regulatory accounting but are recognized under IFRS in accordance with the
Corporation’s revenue recognition policy or when expenses are incurred.
(iii) The OEB approved two deferral accounts to record incremental costs associated with the
implementation of IFRS, and any incremental costs needed to comply with Environment
Canada’s new regulations associated with PCBs under regulatory accounting. The
Corporation’s expenses these items as incurred under IFRS.
(iv) The OEB approved a deferral account to record lost revenues associated with the delivery
of CDM programs between 2011 and 2014. The Corporation will recover this revenue
through future distribution rates.
(v) The OEB approved four deferral accounts to record qualifying incremental capital
investments or OM&A expenses related to the connection of renewable generation or the
development of smart grid. The Corporation expenses and capitalized these items as
incurred under IFRS.

52

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(vi) The OEB also requires Enersource Hydro to track the difference between revenue and
costs associated with providing retailers with customer settlement services as retail cost
variance account deferrals. Under IFRS, this difference flows through the statement of
comprehensive income as profit or loss and will affect future distribution revenue.

24.

Divisional Information (continued):
(vii) The difference in income taxes or PILs resulting from legislative or regulatory changes to
tax rates or rules as compared to rate-setting was recorded in an OEB approved variance
account in regulatory accounting. The Corporation will now recognize these differences in
future periods under IFRS as an increase or decrease to distribution revenue in future
periods.
(viii) On November 27, 2009, Enersource Hydro submitted an application to the OEB to
recover/refund all retail settlement variance account balances as at December 31, 2008, as
well as energy variance and global adjustment variance account balances as at September
30, 2009. The net recovery of $12,800 was approved by the OEB on January 29, 2010 to
be recovered from February 1, 2010 to January 31, 2012. Under regulatory accounting, the
Corporation amortizes a net regulatory asset according to the recovery of these variances.
Since the Corporation does not recognize regulatory assets and liabilities under IFRS, the
net recovery of these prior period variances included in revenue will not be offset by an
increase in operating expenses.
(ix) On August 17, 2011, Enersource Hydro submitted an Electricity Distributors’ Deferral and
Variance Account Review application to refund approximately $40,000 in Retail Settlement
Variance Accounts balances as at December 31, 2010. On December 9, 2011, the OEB
released its decision and order in which it approved a two year disposition period effective
February 1, 2012 of all balances as filed including interest up to January 31, 2012. Under
IFRS, the net refund of these prior period variances included in revenue will not be offset
by an increase in operating expenses.
(x) The OEB requires the Corporation to accrue interest on regulatory assets and liabilities
balances. Under IFRS, the net interest on these balances, once approved for recovery or
refund by the OEB, either increases or decreases future distribution revenue.
(xi) To the extent that the OEB's future actions are different from the Corporation’s
expectations, the timing and amount of recovery or settlement of amounts included in the
adjustment for regulatory activities could be significantly different from the amounts that are
eventually recovered or settled through distribution rates in the future.

25.

Other Revenue:
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(a) Government grants:
The Corporation recognized $13,703 ($9,952 – 2011) of OPA funding in other revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2012. The Corporation recognized $12,298 ($9,363 – 2011) of OPA
costs under operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012. The Corporation
currently has no unfilled obligations relating to the government grants received by the OPA.

25.

Other Revenue (continued):
(b) Compensation from third parties for items of PP&E:
The Corporation recognized $290 ($206 – 2011) for damage claims received from third parties
relating to emergency replacement of distribution equipment.
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